SAPPER EDWARD MYTTON

4410 – 3rd Tunnelling Company
Edward Mytton is commemorated in the Sutton Veny section of the ‘WW1 Australian Soldiers & Nurses Who Rest in the United Kingdom’ website, produced by Beth Page, Australia.  A 2015 profile of his service by Cathy Sedgwick can be seen at:

https://ww1austburialsuk.weebly.com/uploads/4/9/7/8/4978039/mytton_edward.pdf

Additional information not included in the above profile: 

Edward Mytton embarked from Fremantle on board HMAT A69 Warilda on 1 June 1916.

Two Sections of the Northern recruits to form the No.4 Company had embarked from Brisbane, Queensland early in May, 1916 aboard HMAT A69 Warilda for Sydney, New South Wales (NSW).  Six officers and 152 other ranks (O.R.s) together with the 1st Reinforcements of fifteen other ranks made up the two sections.

At Rosebery Park, Sydney, NSW they joined their Headquarters and two sections (8 officers & 153 O.Rs.) plus 1st Reinforcements consisting of one officer and seventeen other ranks for final training.   
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The 7713 ton transport departed Sydney, NSW on May 22, 1916 bound for Melbourne, Victoria, where the Headquarters and 3 Sections of No.5 Company boarded the transport.  Two of those Sections, 8 Officers and 173 O.R.s, had been recruited in Victoria.  The third Section of 3 Officers and 76 O.R.s had been recruited in Tasmania.  Also boarding in Melbourne were the 1st Reinforcements for No.5 Company; 17 men from Victoria and 8 from Tasmania.  The ship departed Melbourne on May 25, 1916 for Adelaide, S.A. where one Section of 3 officers and 76 O.Rs with 1st Reinforcements of 8 O.Rs, boarded Warilda to complete No.5 Company. 
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Docking at Fremantle, W.A. on June 1, 1916 No.6 Company had been recruited in W.A. and the 14 Officers and 325 O.R.s, along with their 1st Reinforcements of 1 Officer & 32 O.Rs, were taken on board and Warilda departed the same day for the European theatre. 

Durban, South Africa was reached on June 16, 1916 and Cape Town on June 21, 1916 while St Vincent completed the African ports of call on July 7, 1916.  

Discipline was fairly good except at intermediate ports where soldiers going Absent Without Leave caused concern.  
The fifty-eight day voyage experienced remarkably pleasant weather and terminated at Plymouth, England on July 18, 1916.  Four, Five and Six Companies comprising of 1064 officers and other ranks were detrained to Amesbury and Tidworth to begin training for the front.
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3ATC End-of-War Report:
The Companies major effort at this time was at Hill 70 where they constructed the extensive Hythe Tunnel system.  The company was also heavily involved in road and bridge construction and in the following year locating and clearing of enemy mines and booby traps.
The investigation party consisting of 4 officers, 12 N.C.O.’s and 42 O.R’s detailed by 3ATC to search for and remove any traps or mines left by the enemy in the area occupied by the 1st Canadian Division, during the operations at Hill 70 by the Canadian Corps, assembled in forward dugouts on the night of the 14 August under the command of Lieut H. Russel.


The Party was divided into 3 detachments as follows: -

(a) 
Lieut. C.C. Shaw with 4 N.C.O.’s and 114 O.R were detailed for duty in the 2nd Canadian Infantry Brigade Area.

(b) 
Lt R.G.B. Ashcroft with 4 N.C.O’s and 14 O.Rs were detailed for duty in the 3rd Canadian 

 Infantry Brigade Area.

(c) 
Lt T. Taylor with 4 N.C.Os and 14 O.Rs were detailed to stand by the 137th Infantry Brigade, 46th Division at Hulloch Tunnel in case of an enemy retirement, opposite that Brigade Front.  This detachment stood by from 9/8/17 until the 18/7/17.  It was not called upon for duty.

Detachment “B” of the left Investigation Party consisted of the following:-



Lt R.G.B. Ashcroft



Sgt Austin


Spr Scott, T.E.


Cpl Wayman


Spr Ridgewell, R.T.


L/Cpl Taylor, J.

Spr Hubbard, E.L


Spr Crawforde, E.A. 

Spr Mytton, E.J.


Spr Blaney, W. 

Spr Andrews, G.


Spr Jackson, H. 

Spr Coglan, M.


Spr Moran, W.H. 

Spr Farckens, H.D.S.


Spr Moyle, H. 


Spr C. Morris, J.B.


Spr Carden, J.
Two parties of 40 O.Rs of Infantry were added to Detachments (a) and (b) by the 2nd and 3rd Canadian Infantry Brigades for duty in their respective areas as sentries, runners, spoil carriers, etc.

Detachments (a) and (b) moved forward as soon as pre-arranged messages were received from the respective Brigades, viz at 5.5 am and 4.55 a.m. respectively on 15 August.

The first objectives were Forward Battalion Headquarters and Advanced Brigade report centre.  These objectives were reached after passing through severe enemy barrage.  Having examined the first objectives, the detachments proceeded to investigate other parts of the area captured, particularly the dugout accommodation.  No mines of traps were found, and any prisoners used in connection with the investigation denied all knowledge of mines or traps having been laid.

The work was carried out under trying circumstances and was much hampered, particularly on 15 and 16 August by the presence of many wounded Canadians and Germans in the dugouts.  The dugouts of the Chalk Cutting were found to be extensive, and part had been used as a Dressing Station for wounded.

The Cutting had been subjected to very heavy shelling by both sides and there were over 50 dead and wounded Germans there on the afternoon of 7 August also a large number of machine guns.  It is possible that entrances from this cutting to dugouts have been crumped in by the heavy shelling and that further accommodation may be discovered by removing the spoil from the sides of the cutting.

An enemy defensive Mine System was examined with entrances from the enemy old front line.  This system was previously known to exist from listening results.  A survey of this system was made.  One gallery was tamped and was found to contain a charge of explosives.

The Party was most fortunate.  Only two casualties were sustained during the operations.

In his report to the Controller of Mines, and 1st Canadian Div. etc, 1st Army, our C.O. testified to the good work done by all ranks.

After the Hill 70 which commenced on the 15th of August and when all the objectives had been successfully achieved, the Investigation Party of the 3rd Aust. Tnlg Co. continued the examination of captured positions, dugouts and so on in search of booby traps and mines until the 18th, when the Party withdrew.

No mines or traps were found in the area of operation, and prisoners captured, denied any knowledge of them.

***
At Vermelles tunnels the work of connecting the “keeps” by the system of subways was well advanced and dugouts and R.A.P.’s were under construction.

In both the above areas – Hulluch and Vermelles – hostile gas bombardment occurred frequently, causing casualties in our working parties.

On 8.4.18, the following were shell gassed at Vermelles:-



4996 Spr Harris, J.


7653 Spr Coe, J.P.



  924   “   Bougher, J.


5829   “   Sheehan, C.



7663   “   Fletcher, W.G.

2389   “   Lewis, T.H.



2358   “   Papchuck, D.


4373   “   Jones, W.R.



2474   “   Carnes, G.S.

On the 9.4.18 the following were shell gassed at Vermelles: -



4410 Spr Mytton, E.


7312 Spr Gardner, G.



7277   “   Daly, J.


1028   “   Hinde, J.



5823   “   Robinson, J.


7024   “   Kenny, J.H.



4459   “   Reynolds, J.H.

6890   “   Turner, J.



4281   “   Broadbent, M.


7578   “   Morris, C.



7495   “   Coyne, M.


1004   “   Fogarty, J.  


7294   “   Ives, A.


7470   “   Lahey, P.  



6837   “   Pritchard, R. 


5824   “   Rodiondoff, N.

7259   “   McGrath, C.J.


5856   “   Walton, J.

6103   “   Casey, J.


5952   “   Andrews, T.W. 
7254   “   Hunter, J.


4296   “   Chandler, A.S.

7363   “   Herman, W.J.


7454   “   Cousins, J.W.


Edward Mytton was a member of 3ATC from August 1916 until his death in September 1919.  3ATC first saw action at Boars Head in the lead up the Fromelles diversion ‘stunt’ of 19 July 1916.  The Company was allocated to the First Army and was engaged variously at Laventie-Fauquissart, Givenchy, Loos, Lens, Double Crassiers and Vermelles and other places on the Western Front.

On 27 November 1916 at the ‘Black Watch Sap’, Hill 70, an enemy camouflet (or a premature explosion, depending on different accounts) killed 20 members of the company.  The next day 2 more members were killed in the same area by an enemy camouflet.  The 22 members of 3ATC were buried in 14 adjacent graves at the Hersin Communal Cemetery Extension.

The Companies major effort was at Hill 70 where they constructed the extensive Hythe Tunnel system.  The company was also heavily involved in road and bridge construction and the locating and clearing of enemy mines and booby traps.  This continued for the company for some months after the Armistice.  
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www.tunnellers.net

Sydney Morning Herald Monday May 22, 1916:


THE TROOPS


INSPECTION AT MOORE PARK


“In the presence of a crowd of 10,000 people the District Commandant, Brigadier-General Ramaciotti, V.D., held an inspection of troops at Moore Park, on Saturday afternoon.  The troops consisted of Field Artillery, Tunnelling Section (including Queenslanders), under Major Vincent; Infantry, under Lieutenant Owen Gibbs, under Captain Brosnan, the whole parade being under the command of Major Holman, D.S.O.


Prior to arrival of the commandant and his staff, the men were drawn up in columns of companies on the Dowling-street side of the ground, facing the tramline.  The bands of Liverpool Headquarters and the Engineers played selections of music.


Brigadier-General Ramaciotti, V.D. made a close inspection of the lines.  Returning to the saluting base the Commandant took the salute as the various units marched past in columns of companies, and again as they returned headed by the band in columns of fours.


One company had with it a small kangaroo as a mascot.  The animal was held on a ribbon, but when it drew level with the saluting base it bobbed up and down as if anxious to do its share in the saluting lines as its male friends were doing.  Its antics were so ludicrous that the crowd roared.


At the conclusion of the inspection the men were marched across to the Royal Agricultural Ground, where they were provided with temporary quarters.” 							           Abridged











The No.6 Tunnelling Company - - Photograph taken at the W.A.T.C. Course, Belmont, where the men have been in training





Tuesday’s parade of troops.  The No.6 Tunnelling Company and the members of the N.C.O. School,


Claremont, marching through the city.





The West Australian Wednesday May 31, 1916:


THE TUNNELLING COMPANY


PARADE THROUGH CITY STREETS


  Although the numerical strength of the troops which paraded the city streets yesterday morning was considerably less that that of previous parades, and despite the fact that citizens have become accustomed to the sight of khaki-clad warriors, the men of the No.6 Tunnelling Company and the Claremont N.C.O. school met with a hearty reception as they swung along to the inspiriting music of the Blackboy Hill band.  The line of route was freely bedecked with flags, whilst the large crowds, if somewhat undemonstrated denoted none the less by their presence their keen appreciation of that sense of patriotism which found its highest expression in the long line of soldiers answering to the call of Empire.  In physique and general bearing the men were equal to their comrades who have gone before.  Leaving James-street well on appointed time, the column swung into Beaufort-street and over the bridge in to Barrack-street.  The members of the N.C.O. school, about 113 strong, under Captain Thompson, followed the band, the No.6 Tunnelling Company, with its first reinforcements, totalling nearly 400 men, under Captain Lawson, bringing up the rear.  At the head of the Tunnellers was borne the flag recently presented to the company.


After traversing Barrack and Hay streets the column entered St George’s-terrace via Victoria-avenue.  Opposite Government House his Excellency (Sir Harry Barron), with whom were the State Commandant (Colonel J.H. Bruche), Major P.H. Meeks and Major Wilkinson, A.D.C., took the salute.  Passing along the Terrace the route was via William and Wellington streets to the station.  The men paraded in full fighting equipment.





The West Australian June 1, 1916:


THE WESTERN MAIL


The war pictures appearing in this week’s issue of the Western Mail:  


In addition, the “Mail” contains a fine photograph of the No 6 Tunnelling Company, as well as an illustration of their march through the streets of the city on Tuesday last, and a photograph of the officers who have been appointed to command the men. 





6th Tunnelling Company – Training in England:





The new quarters in Perham Downs, Salisbury Plains were excellently appointed but in spite of this measles broke out in a neighbouring unit and spread to this Company causing a certain proportion to be quarantined from August 7th onwards.


No rifles and few tools being available at Perham Downs very little technical training was carried out.  The sojourn in England however allowed the men to become physically fit after the long sea voyage and to become acclimatised to far more rigorous weather than that to which they were accustomed.  They also had ample opportunities of seeing and hearing trench mortars at work both by night and by day, and acquiring familiarity there with.


General leave was granted in England on two occasions firstly for thirtysix hours on August 2nd and again for 4 days on August 21st.


Final leave being over on August 24th preparations for crossing the Channel were made.  The Company was inoculated against Para Typhoid on August 25th.  On August 29th it entrained for Folkestone, crossed the Channel the same afternoon and spent the night at Astrehove Camp near Boulogne.  The next morning it entrained again and moved on to the 2nd Australian Divisional Base Depot at Etaples, arriving there at a strength of 13 officers and 291 men, the remainder having for the most part been left at Perham Downs to complete there period of measles isolation.


Immediately on arrival at Etaples Rifles were issued to all ranks and revolvers to Officers.  A refresher course of Musketry was fired forthwith, the Company achieving the distinction of shooting the best course ever accomplished at the range up to date.  Several times a week the Company spent the whole day at No.1 Training Camp, locally known as the “Bull-ring” where excellent instruction was received in Bomb-throwing, Bayonet fighting, Gas Helmets, Machine Gun work and so forth, the whole being of a thorough nature and after the very latest advices from the Front.


On September 23rd instructions were received that the Company was to be used to reinforce No.3 Company already at work at the Front, to the extent of 8 officers and 206 men, while the remainder were to stay at Etaples awaiting further orders with the exception of Captain Lawson, Officer Commanding, and Captain Hillman, who were also to proceed to the Front temporarily without command.  The Company accordingly to that strength only left Etaples on the morning of September 25th arriving at Le Drumez the same evening.  The next morning Captain Lawson formally handed over the whole party to Major Coulter, officer Commanding No.3 Company, who immediately proceeded to allot them to duty.





	The existence of No.6 Tunnelling Company as such was thus terminated.








Kalgoorlie Miner, WA – Wednesday 21 February 1917:


COMFORTS IN TRENCHES


APPRECIATION OF WOMEN'S CLUB.


The secretary of the Goldfields Women's Club, Mrs. R. M. Jordan, has received the following letter of thanks, written in the Firing Line, France, on Dec. 8, by Sergt. Fred Thompson: —


“I have again to thank you on behalf of my Relief and myself for gifts from the Goldfields Women's Club. They were distributed this morning by Corporal P. McKenzie, and the signatures of the receivers are attached.  I am writing this right up in the firing line, with shells bursting all round the dug outs, so you will please excuse pencil and hurried note.”


The undermentioned signatures of men who received gifts were attached : — Sergt. Fred Thompson, Corpls. W Searle and J. Mackenzie, Ptes. W. R. Gardiner, G. F. Calanchini, J. Felipor, F. Alexander, F. Griffin, J. Taylor, O. Prichard, T. Coulson, A. G. Thomas, H. Gatehouse, C. Edmondson, D. McPherson, T. P. Smith, A. McDermott, O. N. Taylor, C. W. Grant, W. Blaney, J. A. Ree, Angus Fraser, J. T. Paull, E. Mytton, R. M. P. Havlin, W. Anderson, Llewellys Jone, and J C. Jones.





3ATC WD April 1918 Pt 3 page 2 thru 6


Vermelles


25.5.18


Sergeant Yeardye states : -	


				I was with the officer in charge of No.2 Section Vermelles & promptly proceded to H incline recognising gas was very strong in this vicinity at “H” incline.  I found a wall had been demolished by one shell & the men working this incline in a dazed condition.  The men were removed to Moore St & then to Brewery Dressing Station.


I consider the gas shell burst very near to them.


Time would be about 9 am.


No. 1214 A. C. Yeardye Sgt


No.2 Section


3rd Australian Tunnelling Company





Albert Charles Yeardye – born 1869 St Pancras, London. Enlisted October 1915. Embarked February 1916. Twice wounded.  Returned to Australia 31 May 1919.  Died 3 June 1948 at Subiaco, Perth, aged 78 years.





The Sydney Morning Herald - Saturday 23 July 1921:





ENGINEERS' ROLL OF HONOUR


The Royal Engineer War Memorial Committee are arranging to deposit a roll of honour of all ranks of the Royal Engineers whose names were officially published as killed in action or died of wounds or disease in the war in the chapel of St. Paul's Cathedral, and the Engineer corps of the dominions, colonial, and Indian armies have been invited to deposit similar rolls of honour in St. Paul's, to be attached to that of the Royal Engineers.  This invitation has been accepted in Australia.  The roll will be inscribed on vellum and enclosed in a casket of Australian timbers to rest on a slab of Australian marble.  





This extract from Tunnellers Roll of Honour included in profile with the kind permission of the


Dean and Chapter of St Paul’s Cathedral, London


Photos courtesy of Robin Sanderson, Paris














